
 

Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Councillor S N Gosine (Chairman) 
Councillor B Garden (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor E H Ben Moussa 
Councillor J Burrell 
Councillor S P Butterfill 
Councillor R M Currans 
Councillor P Cutler 
Councillor P M Harman 
Councillor D T Nicklen 
Councillor A J Oakley-Dow 
 

Councillor V Oguntope 
Councillor T Oliver 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog 
Councillor E E Palmer 
Councillor D J Reynolds 
Councillor L J Reynolds 
Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE 
Councillor Mrs R F Storey 
 

 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Tuesday 19 October 2021 

 
 

at 7 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 

 
Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services 

(11 October 2021) 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Tuesday 19 October 2021 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
term(s) of any Grants of Dispensation by the Audit Board or Chief 
Officer and Director of Corporate Services. 
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2021  (Pages 1 - 
6) 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

5. To consider references from other Committees (if any)   

 

 There are currently no references from other Committees for 
Members to consider. 
 

 

6. Chairman's Update   

 

7. Regulation 9 Notice [Forward Plan]  (Pages 7 - 
10) 

 

 To consider any issues arising from the Regulation 9 Notice [Forward 
Plan] for the period 15 September 2021 to 31 January 2022. 
 

 

8. Princes Park Annual Update 2020-21  (Pages 11 
- 20) 

 

9. Dartford Cricket Club in Hesketh Park Annual Update 2020-21   

 



 

 

10. Review 2021-22 Work Plan  (Pages 21 
- 24) 

 

 



 

1 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 13 July 2021 
at 7.00 pm. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor Sacha Gosine (Chairman) 
Councillor Brian Garden (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Emma Ben Moussa 
Councillor Sue Butterfill 
Councillor Rosanna M Currans 
Councillor Paul Cutler 
Councillor Matthew Davis 
Councillor Peter Harman 
Councillor Danny Nicklen 
Councillor Julie A Ozog 
Councillor Ellenor E Palmer 
Councillor Lucas J Reynolds 
Councillor Avtar Sandhu MBE 
Councillor Mrs Rebecca F Storey 
 

ABSENT: 
 

Councillor John Burrell 
Councillor Adrian Oakley-Dow 
Councillor Victoria Oguntope 
Councillor Tom Oliver 
Councillor Denzil J Reynolds 
 

 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 
 

 Sarah Martin – Chief Officer & Director of Corporate 
Services 

 Stephen Jefferson – Leisure & Communities Officer 
 

CABINET MEMBERS: 
 

Councillor Jeremy A Kite MBE, Councillor Chris 
Shippam, Councillor Andy R Lloyd and Councillor 
Richard J Wells 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors; J Burrell, A J 
Oakley-Dow, V Oguntope, T Oliver and D J Reynolds (Substitute Cllr. M 
Davis). 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 
NOVEMBER 2020  
 
   RESOLVED: 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

That the Minutes of the virtual meeting of the Committee held on 17 
November 2020 via the Zoom platform be confirmed as an accurate record of 
those remote proceedings. 
 

4. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for Members to 
consider. 
 

5. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
None. 
 

6. CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE  
 
The Chairman welcomed Committee and attending Cabinet Members and 
Directors and presenting Officers, to the first in person meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee since the second Government lock-down in 2020 to help combat 
the effects of the Coronavirus pandemic. He gave a special welcome to 
Councillor Ellenor Palmer who was attending her first meeting of the 
Committee since her recent election to office in May 2021. 
 

7. FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Chairman reminded the Committee that its purpose was to hold the 
Council to account for its policies and decision making processes, on behalf of 
Dartford residents and the greater good, and he encouraged Members to 
draw-down items from the published Regulation 9 Notice [Forward Plan] on 
any items they thought merited scrutiny by the Committee, either that evening 
or subsequently. 

 
RESOLVED:  
 

That Members note the contents of the Forward Plan (Regulation 9 Notice) for 
the period 15 June 2021 to 31 October 2021. 
 

8. DRAW-DOWN - APPOINTMENT TO THE BOARD OF THE EBBSFLEET 
GARDEN CITY TRUST  
 
The Chairman had drawn-down for consideration by the Committee on behalf 
of his Group, Cabinet Min. No. 4 of 27 May 2021 which advised, inter alia, of 
the appointment by Cabinet of Councillor D T Nicklen, to the Board of the 
Ebbsfleet Garden City Trust (EGCT) to represent the Council on that external 
body. 
 
Prior to debate commencing Officers had confirmed that neither attending 
Cabinet Members nor Cllr. Nicklen [in attendance as a Member of the 
Committee], were conflicted and could remain in the Council Chamber and 
participate in the debate. 
 
The Chairman asked the Leader of the Council [in his role as Chairman of 
Cabinet] what process had been followed in appointing Cllr. Nicklen to his role 
on the Board of the EGCT. 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 13 JULY 2021 
 
 

3 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

The Leader of the Council informed the Committee that he [and the Leader of 
Gravesham Council] had received an informal email from the Chief Executive 
of the Trust on 20 May 2021 asking that each District Council nominate a 
Councillor to sit on the Board of the EGCT to represent their respective local 
authorities.  
 
He advised the Chairman that the nomination of Councillors to represent the 
Council on an ‘Outside Body’ was an executive function of Cabinet. As such, 
nominations to Outside bodies were drawn from the Conservative Group as 
the majority political Group forming the Administration of the Council. Such 
appointments were not governed by any considerations of political 
proportionality as pertained to the nominations by Group Leaders of their 
Members to sit on the Council’s varied Committees, Boards and Panels, 
providing the size of the Council body permitted such representation on a 
proportional basis from minority political Groups forming the General 
Assembly of the Council, together with the majority Conservative political 
Group.  
 
As Cabinet Chairman the Leader had nominated Cllr. Nicklen for the role 
which Cabinet had endorsed at its meeting on 27 May 2021 [Min. No. 4 
refers]. The appointment would be formally advised to the General Assembly 
of the Council (GAC) at its next meeting on 26 July 2021, in accordance with 
the established process of advising all such appointments by Cabinet of 
Councillors to ‘Outside Bodies’, as set out in the agenda for the Annual 
Meeting of the Council each year, most recently on 28 April 2021 [GAC 
agenda Appendix Y Min. No. 21 refers]. 
 
In response to a specific question from the Shadow Portfolio Holder for Local 
Democracy and Community Involvement, the Leader of the Council advised 
that Cllr. Nicklen’s role representing the Council on the Trust Board was to 
ensure strong management and efficient service delivery on behalf of Dartford 
residents, within the Trust’s legal framework and responsibility for the 
ownership of its land holdings and assets and the generation of income to 
sustain those assets.  
 
In response to a further question from the Chairman, with regard to the 
specific appointment of Cllr. Nicklen to the role of Council representative on 
the Trust Board, the Leader advised that it was made primarily on the basis 
that Cllr. Nicklen was an Ebbsfleet Councillor and resident, and had 
previously been proactive in monitoring the development of the Ebbsfleet 
Garden City project on behalf of local residents, and his appointment to the 
EGCT Board was made on that basis. 
 
Several Members spoke in support of Cllr. Nicklen’s appointment to the Trust 
Board and the logic of the process followed by Cabinet in arriving at its 
decision and wished him well in his new role on behalf of the Council. 
 
Cllr. Nicklen thanked Members’ for their support and good wishes and 
undertook to report back to the Committee on the Trust’s progress in the 
future. 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



 

 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members’ note the appointment of Councillor D T Nicklen to 
represent the Council on the Board of the Ebbsfleet Garden City Trust 
by Cabinet on 27 May 2021 [Cabinet Min. No. 4 refers]. 

 
9. DRAW-DOWN - LOCAL AUTHORITY REMOTE MEETINGS - COUNCIL'S 

RESPONSE TO CALL FOR EVIDENCE AND ANCILLARY MATTERS, 
CABINET 27 MAY 2021  
 
The Chairman had drawn-down on behalf of his Group for discussion by the 
Committee, Cabinet Min. No. 10 of 27 May 2021, which recorded in detail the 
decision by Cabinet that the Council should continue to hold its statutory and 
decision making meetings in person and at a physical location, following the 
expiry on 7 May 2021 of the Government’s emergency statutory legislation 
passed in 2020, which had enabled local authorities to hold meetings 
remotely during the Coronavirus pandemic.  
 
The Cabinet decision also took note of the High Court decision in April 2021 
that local authorities could not continue to hold virtual meetings after 7 May 
2021 under the existing legislation [Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended)], but must hold meetings in person at a stated location. Cabinet 
also resolved on 27 May that the Council’ response to the Government’s ‘call 
for evidence’ should make clear that the Council intended to hold its statutory 
and decision making meetings in person going forward, subject to local 
decision. 
 
The Shadow Lead Member for Local Democracy and Community Involvement 
sought clarification on the finality of the Cabinet decision taken on 27 May 
2021 concerning the ending of remote Council meetings, whether there was 
any scope for the resumption of remote Council meetings in the future, what 
role was proposed for the cross-party discussion group proposed by the 
Leader [Cabinet Min. No. 10 refers], who would sit on it and when it would 
convene. 
 
The Leader of the Council confirmed that his proposal for a cross-party group 
of Members to consider the topic of remote and hybrid Council meetings in 
the future [Cabinet Min. No. 10 refers] remained on the table. The proposal 
had not been progressed since 27 May on cost grounds initially [as set out in 
general terms in those minutes - agenda p.13 fourth para refers]. Nor 
subsequently, following the draw-down of the Cabinet minutes by the Labour 
Group for discussion by the Scrutiny Committee on 13 July. He proposed that 
pending the outcome of debate that evening, his proposal for a cross-party 
group of Members to discuss the possibilities of remote and hybrid Council 
meetings in the future be taken forward. 
 
   RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of Cabinet Min. No. 10 of 27 May 
2021[agenda item 9 refers]; 

2. That the proposal by the Leader of the Council to establish a cross-
party group of Members to consider the topic of holding remote Council 
meetings in the future be implemented; 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 13 JULY 2021 
 
 

5 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

3. That the cross-party group report back to the Committee on their 
findings. 

 
10. KEY URGENT CABINET DECISION TAKEN UNDER STANDING ORDER 

54(7) - PURCHASE OF LAND FOR COUNCIL HOUSING  
 
The report and appendices from the Democratic Services Manager informed 
the Committee of a key decision taken by Cabinet on 27 May 2021 under 
Standing Order 54(7) which had been taken on grounds of urgency, to enable 
the Council to submit a timely bid for the purchase of land in Dartford Town 
Centre for Council Housing.  
 
The time critical nature of the decision, had precluded its inclusion in the 
Council’s published Forward Plan (Regulation 9 Notice) as required prior to 
Cabinet, and it had been subsequently added to the Cabinet agenda for 27 
May by applying the special urgency provisions contained in Standing Order 
54(7), which also require that any such decision taken by Cabinet be reported 
to the next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee.  
 
Members were informed that in the event, the Council’s bid had been 
unsuccessful, but that Standing Orders required that the Committee be 
formally notified of the action taken by Cabinet. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the report and the publication of the Regulation 11 
Notice [report Appendix A refers] in accordance with Standing Order 
54(7), relating to the key urgent decision taken by the Cabinet on 27 
May 2021, to allow the Council to bid for land in Dartford Town Centre 
for Council housing. 

 
11. ORCHARD THEATRE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2019-20  

 
The covering report from the Leisure & Communities Officer presented the 
Annual Report & Accounts 2019/20 for The Orchard Theatre, on behalf of the 
management company Orchard Theatre Dartford Limited (attached as 
Appendix B to the report). The Theatre accounts for the year ended 31 March 
2019 were attached as Appendix C and the Council’s Monitoring Schedule of 
performance attached as Appendix A to the report. 
 
Members were advised that the enforced closure of The Orchard theatre due 
to the ongoing Coronavirus pandemic, had enabled significant planned 
refurbishments to the building to take place including; increased capacity, new 
auditorium seating, new lighting and sound systems and improved access for 
wheelchair users [report p.16 agenda p.47 refers].  
 
Members praised the efforts of the Theatre Director in the period under 
review, and gave particular praise to the new expanded and creative format of 
the annual report, which successfully conveyed the ‘magic of the theatre’ with 
its colourful format and graphics. 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



 

 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

Post Meeting Update 
 
In response to a Member’s enquiry regarding the Premier Card scheme 
[report p.8 agenda p.39 refers], the Theatre Management team had 
subsequently confirmed that the scheme was still in place, had a membership 
of 2,800 and that discounted bookings could still be made online. Membership 
renewals due during lock-down had been extended by 12 months. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1.  That Members note the Annual Report & Accounts 2019/20 for The 
Orchard Theatre Dartford. 

 
12. COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT FOR PRECEDING  2020-21 MUNICIPAL 

CYCLE  
 
The covering report from the Committee Co-ordinator enclosed at Appendix A 
a draft annual report on the work undertaken by the Committee in the 
preceding 2020-21 municipal year. The Committee’s Protocol and Terms of 
Reference (ToRs) were attached as appendices B and C respectively. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the report and approve its submission to the 
General Assembly of the Council as presented with their thanks. 

 
13. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN FOR 2021-22 MUNICIPAL CYCLE  

 
The report from the Committee Co-ordinator attached at Appendix A for 
Members consideration, a draft Work Plan for the remainder of the 2021-22 
municipal cycle. 
 
   RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the report and Work Plan attached at Appendix A. 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 7.45 pm 

 
  

 
Councillor S N Gosine 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



15 September 2021 - 31 January 2022 
 

1 of 3 

 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE 

 
This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly. 
 
All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively. 
 
Cabinet Members: 
 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Housing 
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Deputy Leader 
Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Portfolio: Youth, Health & Wellbeing 
Councillor S H Brown, Portfolio: Waste & Environment 
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Finance 
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Arts & Culture 
Councillor R J Wells, Portfolio: Community Safety 
 
All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk. 
 
This notice supersedes all previous notices. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 7



 

2 of 3 
 

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified) 

Allocation of Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Funding: 
Dartford Town Centre 
Regeneration Project 
 
To allocate funding from the 
Community Infrastructure Levy for 
the Dartford Town Centre 
Regeneration Project. 
 

Cabinet 
28 Oct 2021 
 

  
 

Sonia Collins, Head of Planning 
Services 
Tel: 01322 343620 
sonia.collins@dartford.gov.uk 

OPEN 

Write-off of National Non-
Domestic Rates 
 
To consider writing-off National Non-
Domestic Rate debts where it has 
not been possible to obtain payment 
because of insolvency, because the 
ratepayer cannot be traced or where 
the debt is otherwise irrecoverable. 
 

Cabinet 
28 Oct 2021 
 

  
 

Sue Cressall, Business Rates 
Manager 
Tel: 01732 227041 
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk 

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended) 

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 7



 

3 of 3 
 

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified) 

London Resort Development 
Consent Order 
 
The London Resort Development 
Consent Order application has been 
submitted to the Planning 
Inspectorate for decision by the 
Secretary of State. The application 
will be considered by an Examining 
Body. The applicants have 
requested that the timetable for the 
examination is delayed as they 
intend to submit additional 
assessment work. The Council are a 
consultee on the application and as 
a relevant authority will be invited by 
the Examining body to submit a 
Local Impact Report (LIR), the 
deadline for this is unknown at 
present but is not likely to before 
February. The LIR should give 
details of the likely impact of the 
proposed development on the 
authority’s area. 
 

Cabinet 
27 Jan 2022 
 

  
 

Sonia Collins, Head of Planning 
Services 
Tel: 01322 343620 
sonia.collins@dartford.gov.uk 

OPEN 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 7



P
age 10

A
genda Item

 7



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

19 OCTOBER 2021 
 

PRINCES PARK-DARTFORD FOOTBALL CLUB ANNUAL REPORT 
2020/21 

 

 
Ward: Brent 
 

   
1.   To consider the Dartford Football Club Annual report 2020/21 and ancillary 

matters.  
 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 

That the contents of the Dartford Football Annual Club Report 2020/21, at 
Appendix A to the report, be noted. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1 The lease for Dartford Football Club (covering the whole of Princes 

Park, with the exception of the mini pitches) was completed in March 
2012 and expires on 31 January 2034. 
 

3.2 The Service Level Agreement for Princes Park (excluding the mini 
pitches) between the Council and the Dartford Football Club is 
reviewed annually in March of each year. The Service Level 
Agreement requires an annual report from Dartford Football Club to the 
Council.  
 

3.3 The Council grant payable to Dartford Football Club in 2020/21, was 
£90,000.  
 

3.4 The Council received a grant from the Football Foundation, which part 
funded the build of the mini pitches. A condition of the grant funding is 
that the Council has to account for all income and expenditure relating 
to the mini pitches. A five year Service Level Agreement is in place with 
Dartford Football Club until 31 March 2025, to manage the mini pitches. 
 

3.5 Under the mini pitch Service Level Agreement, Dartford Football Club 
receives a fee of £21,863 (paid quarterly) to maintain and operate the 
bookings of the pitches, and a share of the income (net income 
reduced by the grant, electricity costs, other minor sundries and a 
contribution to the refurbishment reserve). 
 

3.6 The Dartford Football Club’s annual report for 2020/21, is at Appendix 
A to the report. 

   
 
 
 

Page 11 Agenda Item 8



 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

19 OCTOBER 2021 
 
4   Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

HW2 Increase the opportunities for participating in sporting, cultural 
and leisure opportunities 

 
5 Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None specifically from this report 

Legal Implications None specifically from this report 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None  

Risk Assessment None specifically from this report 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 
 
 Appendix A – Dartford Football Club Report 2020/21 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section 
and 

Directorate 
 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

  Stephen Jefferson 
 

Community 
Services 
Growth & 
Community   
 

N/A 

 

Page 12Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

Princes Park June 2020 – May 2021 

Gate attendances July 2020 - May 2021: 900 – Due to Coronavirus, our first team season got delayed 

and only started in October 2020. The games were all played behind closed doors under strict COVID 

policies and restrictions. The one game we did have a crowd was in September 2020 when we were 

selected to be a trial game for crowds coming back safely. With the approval of SAG and 

environmental health, we safely hosted the game and found it very successful. It proved we could 

welcome back big crowds again as soon as it was safe to do so. All our games were streamed live for 

supporters to watch, which gave people something to look forward too during lockdown.  

Golf usage: April 2020 - March 2021: 5424 rounds by members / loyalty cards holders, & pay on gate 

rounds. – The golf course has improved massively under the new management, Paul Page Golf 

Academy. The condition of the course is much improved and new things been added to improve the 

course. There is also a reception now at the 1st hole and an indoor simulator where Paul carries out 

lessons. Paul has also got involved in our community programme and delivers golf lessons at some of 

our primary schools. Membership and casual golfers have increased now that there is someone 

dedicated to doing this, Paul also held a national competition recently for child golfers. Paul was 

closed from 23rd March 2020 until middle of May due to Covid 19. He re-opened with all correct 

guidelines implemented. 

Paul Page has continued to run a loyalty scheme where golfers pay for 5 rounds and get their 6th 

free. The golf course is advertised on twitter, Facebook, website, periodically in the programme and 

has been advertised in local magazine Dartford Living. An advertising board is pitch side within the 

stadium, and there is also a road sign on Princes Road by the main gates promoting the golf course. 

Feedback from members is that the general state of the golf course is excellent compared to 

previous years. 

Community Pitch and Mini Pitches were used by over 30 local clubs in the last year. They all have 

regular weekly bookings. We also booked in over 100 casual bookings from people in the local 

community. We were closed from March 2020 until July 2020 and then closed again November 2020 

until March 2021 due to lockdowns. Therefore no bookings were taking place on the pitches. The 

pitches are planned to be refurbished September 2021. 

Dartford fc have regular bookings online for all its facilities, it allows people to book golf, mini 

pitches and community pitch online. Payment can be taken there and then through paypal which is 

easier for the customer. 

London City Lionesses ground shared with us for their third season. The team play on Sunday’s in the 

Women’s Super League Division 2. Teams in that league included Liverpool, Aston Villa, Tottenham, 

and Leicester City. This provided great coverage nationwide for Princes Park and attracted interest. 

They played 12 home games all behind closed doors but streamed live online for people to watch.  

Charlton u23 played here last season, playing 12 games in total behind closed doors. Part of the 

agreement was for our first team to play their first team this July which took place with 2000 in 

attendance.  

Page 13 Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

The club run 3 academy teams, one team are linked with Leigh academy alongside the 35 youth 

teams in the pre academy and junior teams. In total we have 457 children under 16 on our books 

and 82 over 16 in the Academy.  

THE LEIGH ACADEMY x1 team 

Dartford Football Club is linked with neighbouring school, The Leigh Academy, to give students the 

opportunity to continue working towards their A-Levels whilst pursuing their passion in Football. 

Phil Murray (Head of DFC Youth Development) and Sean Scolding (DFC Community Lead) have been 

working alongside Simon Beamish (Leigh Academies Trust CEO), Sue Crocker (Leigh Academies Trust 

Business Director) and Sharon Waterman (Leigh Academy Principal) in order for the scheme to come 

together. With The Leigh Academy and Dartford FC being located next door to each other it was an 

opportunity that no one involved could miss out on and a chance to create an ongoing partnership. 

Dartford FC already has an Academy in place which runs in partnership with SCL and offers students 

the chance to gain BTECs along with qualifications and experience in football. Due to many young 

adults aspiring to go to university after their school education is over, the necessity of A Levels is 

something that students would currently miss out on at Dartford. The new partnership with The 

Leigh Academy now enables those who have a passion for football to continue their studies towards 

the qualifications they need whilst receiving regular training and coaching from highly qualified FA 

coaches affiliated to the football club, plus the opportunity to represent the club at levels between 

Youth Conference Alliance League and the new SCL League with the possibility of progressing into 

the First Team or higher. 

With A Levels such as Biology, Media Studies and P.E. to choose from there is a suitable variety of 

options available for any candidate who is interested in the scheme. In order for students to gain 

their place on the course they must obtain 5 GCSEs grade A-C including Maths and English. Once 

their academic application is successful they will be offered a trial at Dartford Football Club. 

We currently have x16 Year 1 students and x8 Year 2 student’s .Next season we obviously hope that 

all x16 year 1 students will continue into year 2 and we take a new intake of year 1 students, 

doubling our numbers from Leigh Academy.  

SCL x2 teams (50 students) 

COURSE 

A 2-year, full-time education and football development programme for 16-18 year olds.  

Year 1 - BTEC Level 3 Subsidiary Diploma in Sport 

Year 2 - BTEC Level 3 Diploma in Sport 

Players will study a variety of nationally-recognised qualifications within sport, coaching and fitness 

managed by SCL. Where required students will study Maths and English GCSE or Functional Skills. 

SCL Education Group is one of the UK’s leading independent providers of education through sport 

and Government approved post-16 private education provider. Experts in the field of sport and 

education delivery with over 15 years' experience. 

Page 14Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

 Programmes delivered in real sports environments  

 Proven Progression routes 

 UCAS POINTS Up to 280 

 LEAGUE- Conference Youth Alliance and SCL league 

 COST-FREE for 16-18 year olds  

 ENTRY REQUIREMENTS-3 GCSES A-C preferably one Maths or English 

 FOOTBALL TRAINING-Dartford FC 

 EDUCATION PROVIDER 

o SCL Education Group 

o Play in the Football in the Conference Youth Alliance and SCL league 

o Daily training from highly qualified FA coaches 

o Guidance on individual football fitness 

o Nutritional advice 

o Regular appraisal to monitor development both on and off the pitch 

The Dartford FC Academy is the pinnacle of the football club's development programme and the 

final stage of preparation prior to Reserve and First Team football. 

With our extensive youth development system, we have developed an outstanding reputation for 

nurturing talented players through this and into professional and non-league football.  

The Academy will play a fundamental role in Dartford FC’s youth department which will strive to 

create a development culture with the primary function of developing players to compete in the 

First Team squad. 

Here at Dartford FC, we are passionate about developing young footballers through the delivery of 

quality coaching, a unique and unrivalled education programme with the use of modern, state-of-

the-art-facilities. 

Players such as Charlie Sheringham (AFC Bournemouth), Cody McDonald (Coventry City FC) and Dave 

Martin (Derby County FC) have all developed their football with the First Team at Dartford Football 

Club before being signed by their respective professional clubs showing the calibre of player that the 

football club is producing. 

PRE-ACADEMY (7-16) 

The pre-academy at Dartford FC forms part of our player pathway to first team football at the club. 

We aim to create a learning environment where talented young players, many of whom have been 

at professional clubs, can continue to progress. Whilst winning is important, our emphasis focuses 

on the way we play. Therefore, developing players who have tactical as well as technical skill is 

delivered throughout the years through a well-balanced learning syllabus. 

Our squads start at u7 (school year 2) and go through to u16s (school year 11), they then trial for our 

full academy if they have achieved the standards required. At an appropriate point, players are 

signed exclusively to the pre-academy squads, until then they can play for their local club teams as 

well. The squads play in the Elite Development Programme (EDP) against professional and semi-

professional advanced player centres. They also play against professional club academy squads. 

Page 15 Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

The U13s – U16s are members of the Junior Premier League with such teams as Portsmouth, 

Bournemouth, Woking, Isle of Wight, Basingstoke, and Charlton. Foundation squad players are 

expected to be coached for 1.5 hours per week and the Development phase players for 3 hours per 

week. They are coached by minimum FA Level 2, YCA Module 2 coaches, or coaches who are working 

towards that minimum standard. 

The pre-academy is divided into two phases for players to learn and develop in the way that our 

clubs wants them to. We feel that this meets the requirements of the FA strategy, ‘The Future Game’ 

and mirrors the approach taken in in the professional academy environments through the Elite 

Player Performance Plan. 

FOUNDATION PHASE 

This phase focuses on the development of our u8s – u11. At these ages we focus on Agility, Balance 

& Coordination (ABC’s). Fun and technique are paramount. Whilst it is serious stuff, we like the 

players to learn and develop in a more ‘discovered learning’ environment, so developing an inquiring 

mind and approach is key. A mild sense of self-discipline will be instilled as well.  

DEVELOPMENT PHASE 

This phase focuses on the development of our u12s – u16s. Whilst technical ability is still key in 

terms of the player development process, at these ages players start to learn about the bigger game. 

Roles, responsibilities and tactical application on the field come above winning. A winning mentality 

is strongly encouraged, but not at the cost of losing sight of playing our kind of football. Footballers 

for all scenarios during in a game, is what we need. To be able to read a game and know what is 

required as: an individual; part of a function; and, as a squad as a whole, whilst being strongly 

disciplined….will see a player through to our Academy! We are looking next season at starting to run 

apprenticeships, where students play football with us and then go to college and do so many hours a 

week also learning a trade. 

ELITE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

We have joined a programme involving professional and semi-professional club advanced and 

development centres. Primarily, this involves playing clubs in tri-tournaments during school holidays. 

The clubs involved are: Arsenal, Brighton, MK Dons, Wycombe Wanderers, Walsall, Northampton, 

Histon, Oxford, Brentford and Luton. 

In addition to the Elite Development Programme, we play against: Millwall, Gillingham, QPR, Fulham, 

West Ham, West Bromwich, Woking, Basingstoke, Leyton Orient and Bournemouth. In the main, 

these fixtures involve our Development Phase (u12s – u16s) squads. 

The club is keen to support local football in the Kent County as well. Our Development Phase squads 

continue to support the local county cup competitions. In addition, we are working with other clubs, 

the FA and local /national youth leagues, in order to create a strategic approach to delivering a 

programme just outside of the professional game. 

 

 

Page 16Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

GIRLS SQUADS 

 Dartford FC already has a thriving girl’s structure. We now have 5 teams from U14s- U16s and a 

Ladies 1st team, who train at the club once a week coached by qualified Pre Academy staff. We also 

run a girls development centre (school years 3 – 6) with the aim of the sessions to develop existing 

talent and encourage girls in the community to get involved in the club. We hope that with a few 

years hard work we can see a vast improvement in the numbers of girls’ squads on offer. Their 

competitive games are played in the Kent Girls and Ladies football league. 

The ladies 1st team have completed their third season. But unfortunately due to Covid their season 

did not start. In May 21 they did get to compete in the Kent cup final which was delayed from before 

Covid. They won in the final which was held at Maidstone.  

Dartford Junior Section 

Dartford Football Club runs a thriving and successful Junior Section with teams ranging from U 7 

through to U21’s x20 teams in total. All those involved are volunteers, including managers and 

coaches. 

The aim of the Junior Section is to provide adequate facilities for training and matches, arrange 

matches and social events for the members and the surrounding community, provide a competitive, 

friendly standard of football for boys and girls aged 7-21 at the cheapest possible price and to 

promote the game of ‘association football’. 

The club holds the prestigious FA Charter Standard status and has been awarded one of the highest 

levels possible that of a Development Club. 

All our Junior Team Managers and Coaches are CRB checked,  qualified to a minimum of FA Level 1 

with some going on to achieve  FA Level 2. Each team has at least 1 Coach and/or Manager that has 

attended the FA Safeguarding Children & 1st Aid Workshops.  The Child Welfare Officer and 

Committee members regularly carry out checks to ensure that managers and coaches adhere to the 

rules of the club.  These include ensuring the safety of the children whilst in their care and carry out 

spot checks at matches to ensure managers have a full first aid kit. 

Mini Soccer School 

Our mini soccer school operates on a pay and play basis meeting every Saturday during the football 

season – September to May.  Our sessions consist of fun based learning of all aspects of football 

including: 

 Passing 

 Dribbling (close ball skills) 

 Shooting 

 1v1 skills 

 Team work 

Our aim is to nurture the interest and love of football in boys and girls aged 4-6 (reception- Yr1 only) 

with the option of joining a Dartford Junior Section team when they reach the appropriate age 

Page 17 Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

group.  At intervals during the season, there may be opportunities for players to get involved with 

tournaments and competitions giving them practical experience of playing in a team. 

The coaches who run our Mini Soccer School come from our own Junior Section and are CRB 

checked, hold FA Safeguarding Children qualifications, First Aid badges and are trained to FA Level 1 

standard. 

Our Mini Soccer School is run on the 3G mini all weather pitches which are a great surface for 

children to learn and develop their footballing skills.   

Community 

The community section is now into its third full year and is becoming well established. We employ 2 

full time staff supported by 6 casual staff. The aim was to really increase community activity in the 

Borough and financially provide revenue for the club that we had not really explored before.  

The junior section (Sunday football boys and girls) has now come under the umbrella of the 

community where it used to be a separate company. They also became the only community club in 

Kent to be awarded the Premier League Stars programme and they deliver reading programmes in 

primary schools. We have a partnership with Playplace to deliver support to youth clubs on local 

estates in Dartford. Holiday courses were well attended up until February 2020 on average 40 

children a day. We also put a coach into 15 primary schools in the borough who had one on one 

sessions with children identified by the school for needing extra help with reading. The community 

section funded a pentanque area to be built and purchased equipment for multi sports. This area is 

used by the Over 50’s group. The special needs group and Milestone came up once a week to use 

the facilities and be coached in multi sports. The mini pitches were used for a lot of schools 

tournament last year which is good as Princes Park has become the main finals stadium for schools.  

Catering & Functions 

The whole catering facilities were closed from March 2020 – June 2021 apart from being open for 

G4S ambulance training throughout the pandemic.  

Champions Bar is open daily from 10am – 10pm for golfers, parents for football and general public 

during the times we were allowed to be open.  

The Road runners still use our facilities on Tuesday’s and Sunday’s. We are hopefully hosting their 5 

mile run in August where runners from all over the area will start and finish at Princes Park and will 

be running around the Dartford area. 

The giving blood centre has been continuing throughout lockdowns and over the past year. There 

was a high response for attendance which was good. 

New 

From January 2021 – June 2021 we were a vaccine centre on behalf of DGS health. This was a big 

success that had the whole community use our facilities to have their Covid jabs. Whilst there was 

no football going on, it was good to be able to offer our facilities to help.  

Page 18Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
PRINCES PARK ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

Improvements were made to the overflow car park to fill in pot holes and resurface areas, this will 

be done again this summer, and is part of the G4S contract to maintain.  

All communal areas have been decorated this summer.  

A new in fill has been created underneath the Princes suite balcony, to accommodate a new club 

shop. This shop will be more visible to the public than the previous one.  

 

Jack Smedley- Princes Park Operations Manager 

Dartford Football Club 

30 September 2021  

Page 19 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
19 OCTOBER 2021 

 
 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ROLLING WORK PLAN 2021-22 

 

 
1. Summary 

 
To identify further items for inclusion in the Committee’s Rolling Work Plan 
for the final two meetings in the current 2021–22 municipal cycle.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Committee reviews the current Work Plan (attached at Appendix A to 
this report), agreed by Members at the last meeting of the Committee on 13 
July 2021 [Min. No. 13 refers] and recommend accordingly.  
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
 
 3.1 The Scrutiny Committee’s Terms of Reference (ToRs) make provision 

for the Committee to approve an Annual Scrutiny Work Programme 
and to allocate a timeframe for its consideration in a Work Plan to be 
reviewed and updated at each subsequent meeting of the Committee. 
 

   
   
 3.2 In considering whether a particular topic or function should be 

included in the Committee’s Work Plan Members need to be mindful 
of the following: 
 

(1) That the primary role of the Committee is to scrutinise 
decisions of the Cabinet that have either been taken or which are 
included in the Regulation 9 Notices [Forward Plan] for future 
consideration by Cabinet; 
(2) That although the nature of the scrutiny will generally dictate 
who participates in the discussion process, inviting participation 
by other councils to give their experiences is not a scrutiny 
function; but one for the Policy Overview Committee which 
undertakes the overview function; to better inform future policy 
options for the Council; 
(3) That discussions on policy statements also fall to the Policy 
Overview Committee to consider who hold the overview function, 
not the Scrutiny Committee; and  
(4) That matters relating to crime and disorder, including anti-
social behaviour (ASB) and Community Safety, fall within the 
remit of the Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) 
Committee. 

 
3.3 The Committee’s Work Plan for the current 2021-22 municipal cycle is 

Page 21 Agenda Item 10



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
19 October 2021 

 
 

  

 
 
 
3.4  
 

attached at Appendix A to this report. Members are asked to propose 
new items for possible inclusion in the final two meetings in the 
current municipal cycle in 2022.  
 
The Work Plan may be supplemented with additional items on an ad-
hoc basis [draw-downs] within the provisions and timescales of the 
Draw-Down process as set out in the Committee’s Protocol. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A: Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2021-22  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 
 

Date File 
Ref 

Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

2020-21  
Committee 
Work Plan and  
July 2021 
Minutes 

30 Sept.  
2021 

 David Hook 
Democratic  
Services  
(01322 343276) 

Democratic  
Services/ 
Chief Officer 
& Director 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 22Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

 

COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021-22 
 

13 July 2021 19 October 2021 
 

18 January 2022 
 

20 April 2022 

 
Orchard Theatre Annual 

Report and Accounts for year 
ended 31 March 2020 

 

Princes Park Annual 
Update 2020-21 

 
Review 2020-21 Work 

Plan 

 
Consider Committee 
Work Programme for 

2022-23  

 
Committee Annual Report for 
preceding 2019-20 Municipal 

Year 

 
Dartford Cricket Club 

Annual Update 2020-21 

 
Regulation 9 Notice 

 
Regulation 9 Notice 

 
Draft Work Plan 2021-22 

 
Review 2021-22  Work 

Plan 

 
 

 
 

 
Regulation 9 Notice 

 
Regulation 9 Notice 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2021
	7 Regulation 9 Notice [Forward Plan]
	Plan

	8 Princes Park Annual Update 2020-21
	Princes Park Appendix A

	10 Review 2021-22 Work Plan
	FINAL Appendix A draft WorkPlan 2021-22


